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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We're going to

          3  begin in just a moment. But if there are people who

          4  are here to testify for the first time, you need to

          5  sign up with the Sergeant of Arms. We're just

          6  waiting on another one of our colleagues who is

          7  downstairs and then we will begin. Thank you. Thank

          8  you very much.

          9                 I'm Philip Reed, Chair of the

         10  Committee of Consumer Affairs. Thank you for joining

         11  us here. I'd like to acknowledge my colleagues,

         12  Council Member Charles Barron to my immediate left

         13  and Council Member Joe Addabbo, sometimes known as

         14  the temporary Chair of the Committee is here. Thank

         15  you. And Christine Quinn, our colleague who is not a

         16  member of this Committee, but is the Chair of the

         17  Health Committee and one of the prime sponsors of

         18  the resolutions that we will be discussing today.

         19                 This morning we are discussing the

         20  issue of prescription drug reimportation. We will do

         21  a general review of the issue and specifically

         22  discuss two relevant resolutions. The first is

         23  Proposed Resolution 354A which calls on

         24  pharmaceutical manufacturers not to limit the supply

         25  of prescription drugs available to Canadian mail-
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          2  order pharmacies. The second is Proposed Resolution

          3  358A in support of pending Federal legislation. The

          4  Pharmaceutical Market Access Act of 2003, which

          5  would permit the reimportation of prescription

          6  drugs. This is the first hearing on each of these

          7  resolutions and we are eager to hear any

          8  constructive criticism and possibly make amendments

          9  in the future.

         10                 Consumers in New York and throughout

         11  the country have been struggling to keep up with the

         12  rising costs of prescription drugs. Seniors, in

         13  particular, are often burdened with exorbitant bills

         14  for life sustaining medication. According to one

         15  study, 22 percent of America seniors have been

         16  forced to either skip prescribed drug doses to

         17  prolong their prescriptions or to go without their

         18  medication overall.

         19                 The staggering cost have prompted

         20  over one million American consumers to seek

         21  prescription drugs from other countries, especially

         22  Canada, where prescription drugs may cost up to 75

         23  percent less than the very same drug in the United

         24  States. These consumers often rely on prescription

         25  drug sites or mail- order pharmacies to purchase
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          2  their drugs.

          3                 The process is known as importation

          4  and may be called reimportation when the drugs in

          5  question were initially manufactured in the United

          6  States and then shipped to Canada for distribution

          7  and sale. No matter the name, it is technically

          8  illegal under the Federal law. There is a growing

          9  support to legalize importation and there have been

         10  significantly bipartisan federal legislation

         11  proposed to do just that.

         12                 A version of this legislation was

         13  even passed by the House of Representatives last

         14  July. However, the Bush Administration and the

         15  majority leader of the Senate, Dr. Bill Frist of

         16  Tennessee remained opposed to the practice and it

         17  prevented a vote on any such legislation. As the

         18  Administration continues its opposition to lifting

         19  the ban on importation, drug companies have begun to

         20  punish distributors who reimport pharmaceuticals to

         21  the United States. A number of the dominant

         22  pharmaceutical companies have severely curtailed

         23  supplies to pharmacies that engage in reimportation.

         24                 We will be discussing these issues

         25  this morning. Importation is obviously a Federal
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          2  question and thus beyond our reach in terms of

          3  direct regulation. However, it is a hugely

          4  significant issue to New York consumers. We may not

          5  be able to control the outcome of this debate, but

          6  we will be able to focus a light on it.

          7                 We are thrilled to be joined today by

          8  some significant figures in the field of

          9  reimportation. Several of them have traveled a great

         10  distances to get here and we appreciate their

         11  commitment to New York consumers. We will begin by

         12  hearing from the Department of Consumer Affairs. I

         13  do acknowledge that DCA has no direct control over

         14  the issue of importation in New York. Nevertheless,

         15  Mayor Bloomberg has publicly supported prescription

         16  drug importation in the past. So we're anxious to

         17  hear from the Department of Consumer Affairs, their

         18  point of view on this legislation. Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 I also want to acknowledge our

         21  colleague, Oliver Koppell who has joined us and is a

         22  member of this Committee from the Bronx. Ms. Toole

         23  is representing the Department of Consumer Affairs

         24  today. Good morning.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good
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          2  morning, Mr. Chair and members of the Committee.

          3  Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you.

          4  My name is Pauline Toole. I'm Assistant Commissioner

          5  at the New York City Department of Consumer Affairs.

          6  Commissioner Gretchen Dykstra asked me to extend to

          7  all of you her regrets that she's not here and her

          8  good regards.

          9                 As the Chair just noted, the DCA does

         10  not have a formal role in the quest to import

         11  pharmaceuticals from Canada. Nevertheless, the

         12  agency is fully aware of the burden that high priced

         13  pharmaceutics place on New Yorkers and indeed on the

         14  City itself. Mayor Michael Bloomberg called on the

         15  FDA to enable consumers to import prescription drugs

         16  directly from Canada in order to help New Yorkers

         17  save money. A year ago, the Mayor joined Illinois

         18  Governor Blagojevich in petitioning to the Federal

         19  Drug Administration for a permit authorizing such

         20  importation.

         21                 Since then, other cities and

         22  localities have followed suit in requesting waivers

         23  and are exploring other options to reduce

         24  prescription drug costs. The City is monitoring all

         25  of these efforts. So far, the FDA has taken the
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          2  position that they are not permitted to grant such

          3  waivers until they complete a comprehensive study

          4  and certify that the imported drugs are safe.

          5  Vermont, as you may know, has sued on two grounds,

          6  one of which is that the Medicare Prescription Drugs

          7  Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 which

          8  prohibits this importation violates the Federal

          9  constitution.

         10                 The City continues to support making

         11  the importation of drugs from Canada legal and is

         12  working to convince the FDA of the merits of such

         13  action. In the meantime, City agencies are working

         14  in many areas to bring down the cost of drugs that

         15  are available to New Yorkers. The City's Health and

         16  Hospitals Corporation is working at a State policy

         17  making level and at a local level to develop

         18  programs that would bring down costs independent of

         19  the FDA's. Action. Some of their efforts include

         20  negotiations with pharmaceutical manufacturers to

         21  drive down costs. Another approach is to better

         22  leverage the considerable expenditure of Medicaid

         23  dollars to reduce the cost of prescription drugs

         24  available to all New Yorkers.

         25                 Over the past several years, HHC has
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          2  been working aggressively to reduce pharmacy

          3  expenses, independent of any action of the FDA's.

          4  Critical to this success has been the management of

          5  their formulary (their list of drugs), so that

          6  prescription practices are standardized and volume

          7  discounts can be obtained from large drug

          8  manufacturers. HHC also benefits greatly from deep

          9  discounts in pricing given to them as a public

         10  health care organization through the Federal

         11  governments Public Health Service pricing structure.

         12  These savings and others allow HHC to continue to

         13  invest in preventive and primary care priorities for

         14  the 1.3 million New Yorkers that they serve. This is

         15  one example of the City's efforts to make

         16  prescription drugs affordable. Please be assured

         17  that the Administration will continue its many

         18  efforts to reduce the cost of prescription drugs.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Ms.

         21  Toole. I know you may not be able to answer all of

         22  these questions and we're not trying to be

         23  antagonistic towards the Administration on behalf of

         24  trying to moving this issue forward for our

         25  constituents. I'm curious in your testimony, just
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          2  informationally, you said Vermont as you know has

          3  sued on two grounds. One of which is the Medicare

          4  Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act

          5  which prohibits importation that may violate the

          6  Federal constitution. Now how is it that it may

          7  violate the constitution? Do you know?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I

          9  believe that it restricts their ability to conduct

         10  trade.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have any

         12  thoughts on steps to counsel the Administration may

         13  take to gather in support of drug reimportation?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, I

         15  think one thing is worth considering is urging the

         16  FDA to conduct that study that they're mandated to

         17  do and expedite it and draw their conclusions more

         18  quickly so we know what the playing field is. And

         19  that certainly would seem to me to be well worth

         20  doing jointly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I have some other

         22  questions for you, but I know my colleagues do. I

         23  want to first turn to Council Member Barron. And I

         24  want to acknowledge that Vincent Gentile from

         25  Brooklyn, another member of the Committee has also
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          2  joined us. Good morning.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Good morning.

          4  There is a distinction between importation and

          5  reimportation. I can understand to some extent some

          6  of the Federal Administration's concern about safety

          7  of drugs that are imported. But on reimportation, if

          8  the drugs were produced here and I'm sure they have

          9  to pass some safety standards here and have been

         10  sent to Canada or wherever. What's the safety

         11  concern about reimportation?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well, I

         13  can't justify the Federal law. I know that this

         14  Administration supports being able to import or

         15  reimport drugs from Canada. But we're stuck with the

         16  Federal law that prohibits that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just want to

         18  know, do you hear any rationale that they give for

         19  the reimportation? I know that's not your -- because

         20  it seems if it's already produced here and if it's

         21  already cleared safety standards, then it would not

         22  be an issue.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I'd be

         24  hard pressed to offer one.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right.
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          2  Thank you very much.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          4  Certainly.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

          6  Addabbo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chair. Commissioner Toole, thank you very much

          9  for your time and testimony today. I think when we

         10  talk about the high cost of prescription drugs, I

         11  think we really must focus on or an issue that you

         12  had brought up in your testimony is how do we look

         13  to lower the costs of these prescription drugs

         14  domestically. I recently did a hearing on out

         15  sourcing and watching businesses and watching jobs

         16  go outside the City, the State and even the country

         17  concerns me. And you alluded to it in your

         18  testimony, how can we look to domestically work at

         19  lowering the cost of prescription drugs. Because I

         20  think is a good focus. Can you allude to it or

         21  expand on it a little bit more on what we're trying

         22  to do to maybe lower the expenses of the

         23  pharmaceutical companies or what are we looking to

         24  do domestically to try and keep the drugs

         25  manufacturing here in this country and the jobs
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          2  here.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I

          4  regret to say that although I have many opinions

          5  about this, it's outside the expertise of my agency.

          6  But I can say that there is something that the City

          7  is pursuing through agencies that do work on health

          8  issues and that is the HHC efforts are definitely

          9  part of this is bringing down costs through bulk

         10  purchasing and trying to leverage that. But that's

         11  really all I would be able to say.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: If there is

         13  further information somewhere in the future, I would

         14  love to get that information, Commissioner and Mr.

         15  Chair, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Before I

         17  call on Council Member Quinn, Ms. Toole, can you

         18  tell us do you get questions through either 311 or

         19  direct calls to the Department of Consumer Affairs

         20  about drug pricing and where people might find lower

         21  priced prescriptions? Has that come up in your

         22  agency?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         24  Generally not actually. We do receive complaints

         25  from consumers who have individual purchasing
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          2  issues. But they tend not to be about the

          3  prescription drug costs.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What are they

          5  about?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Buying

          7  something that was poorly manufactured and wanting

          8  to return it and running into a wall at the

          9  establishment. Not being able to get a refund when

         10  they think they are due that. We haven't received

         11  many complaints about prescription drug prices and I

         12  can even go further. We've been paying attention to

         13  this in particular in the last few weeks because of

         14  the shortage of the flu vaccine and we have not been

         15  receiving any complaints about jacked up consumer

         16  prices for flu vaccine. We're very attuned to that.

         17  In passing, I would note that I read in today's

         18  paper that the Federal government is looking at

         19  importing flu vaccine from Canada. Whatever that

         20  means, the FDA is on top of making that class of

         21  drugs available.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It's called an

         23  election. Council Member Quinn.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         25  much. I would be careful to caution us not to say
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          2  that the FDA is on top of responding to the shortage

          3  of flu vaccines. It was actually Senator Clinton who

          4  early this week called for the Federal government to

          5  begin looking at how we could get vaccines from

          6  other countries to deal with this crisis and

          7  hopefully the FDA will follow through on that. But

          8  I'm concerned that that may not be the case at all.

          9                 Actually, I was going to raise the

         10  issue of Senator Clinton's call to have this crisis

         11  be partially solved by looking to other countries

         12  and also being perhaps the United States as first as

         13  a nation to getting drugs from other companies and

         14  wanted to know what Mayor Bloomberg's position was

         15  on that. What his position was on the emergency flu

         16  relief act, I think it's called, that the Senator

         17  proposed earlier this week and wanted to know on the

         18  flu if he had any conversations with the folks in

         19  the Bush Administration. And then perhaps most

         20  importantly, my question is given that Mayor

         21  Bloomberg has taken a position in support of

         22  importing drugs from other companies or

         23  reimportation of drugs from other countries, what

         24  steps has he taken to convince his parties

         25  administration to move forward since there seems to
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          2  be confusion within the Bush Administration about

          3  what their position is or isn't.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Well,

          5  on the first part of your question, that wasn't the

          6  topic I was asked to address here and I'm not sure

          7  what the Mayor has done about that. But I'm sure

          8  someone else would be willing to answer that

          9  question if you asked the Mayor's office.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Could you

         11  forward the question?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: But on

         13  the second question --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Before we get

         15  to --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         17  Quinn, could be let her finish her answer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If she could

         19  just forward -- I'm happy to, but if you could

         20  forward that question to the appropriate person and

         21  have them respond through the Chair, I'd appreciate

         22  that.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         24  Certainly.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We'd be

          3  delighted to do that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: On the

          6  second question, the Administration has several

          7  agencies who worked on pieces of this and my

          8  understanding is they're working slowly to sort of

          9  be prepared. They are awaiting the FDA action and

         10  the Law Department in the Washington office have

         11  taken whatever they think is the appropriate steps.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That was

         13  regarding the flu or the whole thing?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That

         15  was regarding what the Administration has done on

         16  the reimportation or importation of drugs from

         17  Canada. On the topic of the flu vaccine in

         18  responding to Senator's Clinton call, I don't know

         19  what the Administration has done and that is the

         20  question that we would refer and answer back to the

         21  Chair on.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I'm

         23  sorry, I got confused there for a second. You said

         24  that the Washington office took the steps that it

         25  thought was correct regarding the overall issue.
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          2  What were those steps? I'm interested to know what

          3  steps they deemed correct.

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

          5  know. But as with all negotiations, a lot of things

          6  aren't sort of revealed publicly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do we know if

          8  the Mayor or his office have met with senators, if

          9  they've met with the secretary, have they met with

         10  other DC officials in the Federal government who

         11  relate to this issue? Do we know if they've met with

         12  our congressional leaders? I'm interested to know,

         13  one just because I'm interested to know and two

         14  because the degree to which we in the Council know

         15  exactly what the Mayor is doing in Washington, we

         16  will be better able to target our advocacy so we are

         17  in coordination which I think would be the most

         18  effective way to send a clear message that New York

         19  City in the united bipartisan fashion is interested

         20  in this happening as soon as possible.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

         22  know the specifics.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If you could

         24  get that issue back to the Chair on who the meetings

         25  have been with, how many, any copies of

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  correspondence beyond the one letter that was sent

          3  eight or ten months ago, that would be helpful.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Council

          5  Member Gentile.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. Commissioner, in addition to the

          8  importation issue, I'm curious as to what the City's

          9  efforts have been in terms of maybe promoting and

         10  expanding programs that are available to New Yorkers

         11  particularly the EPIC drug prescription, the Elderly

         12  Pharmaceutical Insurance Coverage Program, which

         13  when it was expanded in the year 2000, we saw a

         14  tremendous wave of seniors joining that program and

         15  it is growing from what I'm told exponentially every

         16  year. Given the fact that the largest co- payment

         17  under the EPIC program is a $20.00 co- payment

         18  regardless of the cost of the prescription drug. The

         19  most that a senior will pay is $20.00. It's been a

         20  good program. It's been a growing program.

         21                 I'm curious as to whether this City

         22  has either a, made efforts to make the program

         23  better known throughout the City and 2, whether or

         24  not the City's made any efforts on the State level

         25  to maybe expand this program to at least those who
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          2  are less than 65 but may be disabled or in some way

          3  have a need for prescription drugs as much as the

          4  elderly population.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: We

          6  concur, it's a spectacular program. It's one of the

          7  best such programs in the country. I know that the

          8  Department of Aging had been promoting that. I've

          9  seen different City agencies disseminate materials

         10  about that, about EPIC. I don't know what if

         11  anything we've done at the State level to expand

         12  it's availability to people.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You would

         14  agree though that expanding it, particularly those

         15  among the may be disabled but are less than 65 years

         16  old would be a help to many, many New Yorkers.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: For

         18  some reason, I thought that the State had expanded

         19  the pool of people who qualified for EPIC, but that

         20  not as many people opted in. But I might be wrong

         21  about that. But certainly since it is such a great

         22  program, many efforts to expand enrollment would be

         23  good efforts and we would support those.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Council

         25  Member Koppell.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I was just

          3  wondering whether if a consumer complained about a

          4  prescription drug that they didn't get the right

          5  drug or that it wasn't working right, would that

          6  complaint come to the attention of your department?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I don't

          8  know. It might come to us. We might then reach out

          9  to the consumer to try and better understand the

         10  full scope of their complaint. Whether it was a

         11  pricing issue or a more medical related issue and

         12  then refer them on to whoever would be the

         13  appropriate entity to intervene.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: What I'm

         15  curious about is from the briefing paper we got

         16  today, it's clear that a large number of people are

         17  in fact getting drugs from Canada, notwithstanding

         18  the illegal nature of such purchases. There are even

         19  people who are helping people purchase those drugs

         20  through the internet. What I'm just curious about

         21  given the opposition to importation is whether these

         22  imported drugs have caused any problems. I thought

         23  maybe you would be a source, your Department would

         24  be a source to tell us whether people have

         25  complained. Because if they haven't complained, then
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          2  I assume that they are satisfied. I don't know

          3  whether they would complain to your Department or

          4  not, but I would imagine it would be a logical place

          5  to complain, Consumer Affairs. Could you find out

          6  for us whether there have been any complaints?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I

          8  certainly could. And we'll let the Chair know and he

          9  can pass that information along.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         12  much, Ms. Toole. I think that you understand and I

         13  think we understand that we're all as New Yorkers

         14  interested with the number of uninsured, health

         15  crisis here and seemingly huge contradiction. The

         16  reason I emphasize in my opening remarks the

         17  language of reimportation is fascinating. We were

         18  discussing earlier that these drugs are made in this

         19  country. But to get them at a cheaper price, we have

         20  to go someplace else. It's sort of like the farmer

         21  who has the cows and makes the milk, but the people

         22  living next door have to a pay a higher price if it

         23  leaves the state and comes back around. I appreciate

         24  you getting back to us with those answers and coming

         25  today. Thank you very much.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          3  Certainly. My pleasure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I want to call

          5  Peter Rost. Please come and have a seat. Also, is

          6  there Lani Sanjek? Yes, Ms. Sanjek, could you also

          7  come up. Those are the only other two people I see

          8  here to testify. Is there anyone else? Okay. David

          9  Ewrin or maybe -- is it Sanjek, is your last name?

         10  I'm sorry, Miss? I'm sorry. Is your last name

         11  Sanjek? That's your last name. And you are

         12  representing the Statewide Senior -- you're not here

         13  representing AARP? Thank you. All right, thank you

         14  very much. Dr. Rost, please.

         15                 DR. ROST: Thank you very much. Ladies

         16  and gentlemen, my name is Peter Rost and I'm very

         17  thankful for having been invited to come and talk to

         18  you. I'm going to start with a confession. I am a

         19  Pharmaceutical Executive and I do believe that

         20  reimportation is a very good thing. I also do

         21  believe that the word reimportation is a misnomer

         22  and we'll talk more about that and I'll explain why.

         23  To me, importation of drugs is about much more than

         24  money. It's about saving American lives. Let me give

         25  you briefly my background. I'm a physician, but I've
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          2  spent 20 years marketing pharmaceuticals. I've been

          3  a Managing Director for a region in Europe with four

          4  country managers reporting to me. I'm currently a

          5  Vice President with Pfizer the largest

          6  pharmaceutical company in the world.

          7                 I want to emphasize that I do not in

          8  any way shape or form represent Pfizer today. I'm

          9  talking as a private citizen. I want to give you and

         10  share some of my personal experiences. I have an

         11  accent as you can tell. I'm also a naturalized U.S.

         12  Citizen. I voted with my feet when I came here to

         13  the United States. I do believe that this is a

         14  wonderful and great country, but I also think that

         15  we can make it even better. I do think that we have

         16  a lot of work ahead of us. I'm very thankful for

         17  what the City Council here is doing and considering

         18  this issue.

         19                 My concern is if you look at some of

         20  the data, some of this has already been mentioned by

         21  the Chairman. There is more data. The Kizer

         22  (phonetic) Family Foundation came out with a study

         23  showing that 15 percent of uninsured children had

         24  gone without prescription medication in the previous

         25  year because of cost. They found that 28 percent,
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          2  one in three of adults without insurance for drugs

          3  had gone without prescription drugs because of cost.

          4  And they found a whooping 87 percent, almost nine

          5  out of ten, of uninsured individuals with serious

          6  health problems, the ones who really need drugs

          7  long- term, cost a lot of money; 90 percent of those

          8  had reported trouble obtaining medication.

          9                 We have depending on which study you

         10  look at, we have between 49 and 67 million Americans

         11  without any insurance for drugs. These people pay

         12  cash, full price. And when I say full price, that

         13  means they often pay twice as much as the ones that

         14  get full rebates through different PBM's and

         15  different versions in the system. They pay the most

         16  the people that can afford it the least. Many of

         17  them don't get the drugs they need because they

         18  can't afford these high prices.

         19                 I am a Pharmaceutical Executive and I

         20  know that drugs save millions of lives. It's a

         21  wonderful thing. But if people don't take them

         22  because they can't afford them, they do not work.

         23  And there are consequences to that. What I know

         24  about importation of drugs is based on my

         25  experience, marketing pharmaceuticals in the U.S.,
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          2  but also in Europe for two decades. Importation or

          3  parallel trade as it's called over there in Europe,

          4  it's been done actually for over 20 years and nobody

          5  talks about this until very recently. Twenty years

          6  of trade going on within Europe of what we're

          7  discussing right now.

          8                 There has never been one confirmed

          9  case of counterfeit drugs reaching a patient in

         10  Europe as result of parallel trade. A few years back

         11  when I was responsible for this region in northern

         12  Europe, actually, they sent me back home. I never

         13  thought that would happen. I went back to Stockholm,

         14  Sweden. I was responsible for the northern

         15  countries. I had a problem over there. Because I had

         16  a lot drug coming in through parallel traders from

         17  southern Europe, in south of Europe, prices are

         18  about half of northern Europe. I lost a lot of money

         19  and I was not a happy person. What I did is I

         20  countered by lowering some of my own drug prices.

         21  This was very controversial then and it still is.

         22  But you know what happened, the free market rewarded

         23  us. I doubled my sales in two years. So I know you

         24  actually work in a free market and make something

         25  positive out of it.
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          2                 Not once during this time, not once

          3  did I hear from a government, regulatory agency or

          4  from the drug industry that this trade within Europe

          5  was unsafe. Never heard a word. Never read it in the

          6  papers. Never any issues. I'm concerned that here in

          7  the U.S., we are being feed with misinformation on a

          8  daily basis. The most recent example is this

          9  weekend's edition of New York Times. This is a paper

         10  I really like. And I have to read it every morning,

         11  so I was really disappointed. They had this article

         12  here saying importing less expensive drugs not seen

         13  as cure for U.S. Woes. And then very importantly,

         14  first problem is lack of supplies in Canada.

         15                 I was so upset about this article. I

         16  didn't only write the New York Times, but I also

         17  brought it to a group of MIT students to whom I

         18  lectured yesterday. And I asked those MIT students,

         19  not knowing anything about drugs, I asked them

         20  bright, brilliant brains. Can you read this article

         21  and tell me what's wrong with it? It took them two

         22  minutes. Number one, they said, well first problem

         23  is lack of supplies in Canada. The author here, the

         24  journalist goes on about the lack of supplies in

         25  Canada, but he actually notices that the bipartisan
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          2  bills, they don't limit importation to Canada. They

          3  asked for importation from all of the industrialized

          4  countries. But I guess if he had considered that,

          5  there wouldn't be any headlines. There wouldn't be

          6  any front page.

          7                 Secondly, the importation bills that

          8  you are considering this resolution on would also

          9  make sure that drug companies are not allowed to

         10  limit supply. Then again, you wouldn't even have a

         11  article. The third thing, here you have the front

         12  cover of the New York Times and you have a graph, a

         13  very powerful graph showing half the drugs are sold

         14  in the U.S. And half the drugs are sold in the rest

         15  of the world which will give you kind of the feeling

         16  that, well, there might not be enough in the rest of

         17  the world to help the U.S. But as one of the MIT

         18  students pointed out, this graph is a lie too. You

         19  know why? Because it's in dollars. When you're

         20  talking about supply, you need to talk about volume.

         21  Because, according to this article, according to the

         22  Congressional Budget Office, drugs overseas are half

         23  the price of the U.S. That means you can take this

         24  graph and redo it and show that two thirds of the

         25  drugs are sold overseas and one third in the U.S.
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          2  That's how wrong a big paper can go. Terrible.

          3                 People could try to scare you are

          4  right about the one thing. Reimportation of drugs is

          5  about safety. Drugs don't work if you don't take

          6  them and I do think we have a bit of a wild west

          7  today with people going on the internet because they

          8  don't always know where they get those drugs from.

          9  But in spite of that, the FDA has publicly stated

         10  they have not found anyone who has suffered any harm

         11  from these drugs. But I do believe it is

         12  responsibility of City Councils, governments,

         13  states, to make sure that their citizens are safe

         14  and a number of cities and states, Springfield,

         15  Massachusetts, Boston, Illinois, Governor

         16  Blagojevich have taken action and I think it would

         17  be wonderful if New York City Council could do this

         18  as well. To provide a safer environment for the

         19  citizens.

         20                 Now, what is the result of all of

         21  this? What is the result of this high drug prices?

         22  What is the result of what we have done here? The

         23  World Health Organization has some numbers and those

         24  are some pretty interesting numbers. We are a

         25  competitive people, right? We're great at what we
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          2  do. We're good business people and we want to be the

          3  best and we usually are. But in healthcare, we're

          4  very far from it. Americans have shorter life

          5  expectancy; higher infant mortality rates; higher

          6  child mortality rates than a host of other educated

          7  but less wealthy countries. UK, Germany, Belgium,

          8  France, Netherlands, I could go on and on. Canada,

          9  they all have better data than we do. We only beat

         10  them in one area. We pay twice as much for

         11  healthcare. And we pay twice as much sometimes ten

         12  times as much for individual drugs. It doesn't make

         13  sense for a business minded nation to do this.

         14                 I note the quote up there by Mr.

         15  Lincoln, Abraham Lincoln once said, you can fool

         16  some of the people some of the time, but you can't

         17  fool all of them all the time. You know what,

         18  Abraham Lincoln had not even read the February 2004

         19  issue if Pharmaceutical Executive which I will do.

         20  Let me tell you what they say. This is the main

         21  monthly magazine for Pharmaceutical Executives. They

         22  say, one of the most dangerous trends in public

         23  opinion is the big increase in those who know the

         24  drugs cost much more in the United States than they

         25  do in other countries. So to know is a dangerous
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          2  trend according to Pharmacy Magazine and I'm here

          3  today to assist in this dangerous trend to make sure

          4  people know and understand the impact of drug prices

          5  and why this should be first priority for any City

          6  Council.

          7                 Actually, you're not the only ones

          8  who care about this and who are worried about the

          9  drug prices. I did hand out another article to you,

         10  I hope, which was New Jersey Star Ledger from last

         11  Friday. It's quite interesting. The headline is Drug

         12  Maker Promotes Generic For Workers. The drug maker

         13  they refer to is one of the biggest foreign drug

         14  companies, Novartis. Apparently this large drug

         15  maker is very concerned also about the cost of

         16  drugs. At least when they have to pay for them for

         17  their own employees. In a memo last month to the

         18  employees, Novartis urged their employees to choose

         19  more generics to control the escalation of costs.

         20  This was written by the number one guy at Novartis

         21  in the U.S., Paulo Costa. Quite amazing. They

         22  obviously didn't expect it to get in the paper,

         23  right?

         24                 My concern is that not legalizing

         25  importation of drugs has a high cost. Not just in
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          2  money, but as I said, in lives. Everyday, I do

          3  believe Americans die because they don't have access

          4  to drugs. Because we want to protect the profits not

          5  only of U.S. Corporations but half the top ten drug

          6  companies are foreign corporations. Novartis, Glaxo,

          7  Roche, they are all foreign corporations. We allow

          8  them to come in here charge whatever they want to

          9  American tax payers. When we go over there, do we

         10  get to charge whatever we want. Of course not. But

         11  they all pay money to the industry organization who

         12  then pays or helps assist some of our elected

         13  representatives. It's wrong. It's really, really

         14  very wrong.

         15                 Drugs don't work if people don't take

         16  them because they can't afford them. Reimportation

         17  will help these Americans and we should also stop

         18  using the word reimportation. I know that you have

         19  said a few things about that. I'm not the

         20  manufacturing guy, but I have to point out as far as

         21  I know, most drugs are imported. Most drugs are

         22  manufactured in Puerto Rica and in Ireland because

         23  of tax reasons. Some of them are manufactured in

         24  U.S. But most drugs are imported as far as I know.

         25  The FDA all receives all these facilities because
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          2  you can't manufacture them somewhere else and bring

          3  them in without having approval and having

          4  facilities that are up to standard. We should stop

          5  using the word reimportation. It's importation of

          6  drugs. The fact that people don't have access to

          7  drugs, that's the bigger safety issue than anything

          8  else. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         10  much. It's a very compelling testimony. I'm sure

         11  there are some questions, but I also would like to

         12  have an opportunity to hear from Ms. Sanjek as

         13  questions later will be directed to both of you.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 MS. SANJEK: Thank you very much,

         16  Chairman Reed. I am here on short notice and with

         17  your permission and your colleague's permission, I

         18  hope we'll be able to submit our written testimony

         19  on these issues. As I said, I am wearing two hats. I

         20  am the Acting Director of New York Statewide Senior

         21  Action Council. One of our claims to fame is having

         22  played a major role in the establishment of the EPIC

         23  Program in New York which I think everyone

         24  understands continues to be an important and

         25  probably one of the nation's best state
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          2  pharmaceutical assistant programs.

          3                 I am also here as a member of the

          4  Executive Committee of the New York City Alliance

          5  for Retired Americans representing over 300,000

          6  retirees and older New Yorkers in New York City

          7  alone. We're here to really thank you for these

          8  resolutions and for the work to bring attention to

          9  this important issue. I certainly want to thank, Mr.

         10  Rost, for his very cogent testimony and I won't

         11  repeat. I had thought to make some of the same

         12  points, but we certainly agree with his perspective

         13  and analysis about the importance of importation in

         14  our crisis around access to affordable medications

         15  at this point.

         16                 I'm sorry that all I have are the

         17  yellow and blue flyers, but I have made copies for

         18  your attention this morning because I did want to

         19  say that we have been a part of a national coalition

         20  working on fair prices and you'll see a reference to

         21  the website that includes a lot of the documentation

         22  over the past, almost a decade that we've been

         23  working on this issue. Basically, we believe there

         24  are only two ways to deal with the issue of pricing.

         25  The first is direct negotiations with the industry
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          2  by some governmental entity. And you've heard the

          3  various ways in which governmental entities in this

          4  country are struggling with finding the authority to

          5  do this.            One of the things we would like

          6  to do is to see New York State use its purchasing

          7  power as the sixth largest healthcare economy in the

          8  world to do a better job at bulk purchasing. Close

          9  to the end of the last legislative session in

         10  Albany, Assemblyman Gottfried, Chair of the Health

         11  Committee and Senator Golden, Chair of the Aging

         12  Committee came together on a bulk purchasing bill

         13  which we hope the City Council will also be able to

         14  get behind. That blue flyer at the bottom indicates

         15  the numbers and we'll send you more information on

         16  that as well.

         17                 The one amendment I would like to

         18  suggest in relation to the Federal importation

         19  legislation is to add the Senate Bill 2328 which is

         20  not a precise companion to the marketing access bill

         21  of 2003. It is a 2004 version that a lot of serious

         22  senate staff work particularly not only Senator

         23  Dorgan, but from Senator McCain and Senator Snowe's

         24  office, put into to include many more explicit

         25  provisions about the way in which safety needed to
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          2  be guaranteed and they really do try to identify

          3  some of the more state of the art technologies that

          4  ought to be used to guard the chain of command over

          5  once products leave the manufacturer. I'm happy to

          6  say that both Senators Schumer and Clinton are co-

          7  sponsors of that bill. I think if there is a way to

          8  amend your resolution to include that, that would be

          9  extremely helpful and important.

         10                 As you know, the leadership in

         11  Congress has actively fought and in fact, Senator

         12  Frist went back on his commitment to hold a vote on

         13  this issue. There was really a very rare occurrence,

         14  I forget the exact number, but more than 200 members

         15  of the House who sent a message over to the Senate

         16  requesting a vote before the 4th of July recess

         17  which Senator Frist had promised and has now gone

         18  back on. I think your efforts to shed light on what

         19  has been an obstructionist process of the leadership

         20  in Congress on this bipartisan legislation is very

         21  important right now.

         22                 You'll also see that there is

         23  legislation primarily spearheaded by Senator Snowe

         24  that also identifies some very specific penalties

         25  for corporate thugs like, excuse me to say, Pfizer.
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          2  I don't work for Pfizer. My button says Pfix Pfizer.

          3  We believe it is really unconscionable that at a

          4  time when they purport a concern for safety that

          5  they would in fact withhold legitimate supplies of

          6  medications from Canadian pharmacists who are simply

          7  responding to Americans who are trying to look for

          8  the most affordable and best price on the market

          9  place. There ought to be penalties for that.

         10                 We would urge both the City Council

         11  and our State legislature to not give any more tax

         12  breaks to corporations that engage in this kind of

         13  corporate thuggery which also raises our

         14  prescription drug bill in Medicaid and in other

         15  public health programs where New York tax payers are

         16  paying the bills. I really want to thank you for

         17  this opportunity to work on this. We'll be happy to

         18  answer any questions. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Another

         20  very compelling testimony. I'm sure my colleagues

         21  have some questions. We've been joined by our

         22  colleague on this Committee, John Liu from Queens.

         23  Glad to see him here today. I'm not exactly sure

         24  where to start because it seems to me that this is

         25  such a no brainer. The issues are very clear. Even
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          2  from the political standpoint, it's hard to see how

          3  an elected official could go out and tell their

          4  constituents that they're not in support of lowering

          5  the price of drugs. I'm just don't quite understand

          6  why we're still struggling over this issue.

          7                 I'm also struck by the fact that

          8  perhaps as you said, Dr. Rost, that they have

          9  presented this bogey man of these unsafe drugs. That

         10  they could be unsafe if they someone went up to some

         11  place and came back. Specifically, is Pfizer a

         12  foreign company as well? You said so many of these

         13  pharmaceuticals are actually not American

         14  corporations. But my understanding is that Pfizer is

         15  an American corporation? Is that correct?

         16                 DR. ROST: Pfizer is an American

         17  corporation, yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are there other

         19  major drug manufacturers that are American?

         20                 DR. ROST: Yes. If you look at the top

         21  ten companies, you have Pfizer, you have Merck. You

         22  have Abbott & Taft, you have Schering Plough; you

         23  have Johnson & Johnson. But half of the top ten are

         24  foreign corporations. Then if you look at the top

         25  20, top 30, you get a lot of Japanese corporations

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  as well. So it is a mix.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You mentioned that

          4  there is a magazine called Pharmaceutical

          5  Executives?

          6                 DR. ROST: Correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's a small

          8  market. I haven't seen it on the newsstand outside.

          9                 DR. ROST: No, it goes to people who

         10  works in the pharm industry. I have a copy of the

         11  article with me if you'd like to have it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm just more

         13  curious, I think, my presumption, help me and tell

         14  me whether it's correct or incorrect. These

         15  pharmaceutical companies talk with one another about

         16  the issues of the day and what's going on;

         17  particularly this drug importation act.

         18                 DR. ROST: I wouldn't be able to tell.

         19  I know that there are law suits going on, anti-

         20  trust lawsuits regarding limitation of supply to

         21  Canada, for instance. I'm sure that's part of those

         22  lawsuits, but I don't have any first hand knowledge

         23  about that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You mentioned that

         25  most of the drugs are actually manufactured outside
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          2  of America.

          3                 DR. ROST: Yes, I said I'm not a

          4  manufacturing person, but my impression working the

          5  industry is that every time when I've dealt with a

          6  manufacturing issue, it's been manufactured in a

          7  plant outside of the U.S. And my impression is since

          8  most of these companies have manufacturing sites,

          9  20, 30 different sites. But they're mainly in

         10  Ireland and Puerto Rica for tax reasons. That's

         11  where drugs are manufactured.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's your

         13  impression too, Ms. Sanjek?

         14                 MS. SANJEK: Yes, I know for example,

         15  Lipitor is made in Ireland and the factory that

         16  sends product to Canada.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry, you know

         18  what?

         19                 MS. SANJEK: Lipitor is made in

         20  Ireland. It's the same factory they package for

         21  Canada and they package for the U.S. It comes off

         22  the same assembly line.

         23                 DR. ROST: That's how it works. You do

         24  one drug and you put it in different packages for

         25  where different labels, different languages.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So when we hear

          3  that the FDA wants to check these manufacturing

          4  sites, are they actually traveling to these foreign

          5  countries to examine them, investigate and make sure

          6  that they're safe?

          7                 DR. ROST: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: They are?

          9                 DR. ROST: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And they have some

         11  authority to do that?

         12                 DR. ROST: Oh, absolutely. If you want

         13  to sell the drugs in the U.S., you have to have safe

         14  manufacturing practices. And actually the issue of

         15  counterfeit drugs, there is a bigger issue with

         16  manufacturers themselves not being able to

         17  manufacture up to standards. I don't know if you're

         18  aware of it, but there are a number of drug

         19  companies that have signed consent decrees with the

         20  FDA because they didn't manufacture the drugs up to

         21  standard. For instance, Schering Plough, was fined

         22  the biggest fine in the history of the U.S. For

         23  this, half a billion dollars because they didn't

         24  have appropriate standards in the manufacturing

         25  facilities for 120 of their drugs. What bigger issue
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          2  than counterfeit drugs.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is an

          4  inappropriate standard? You mean there wasn't issues

          5  of hygiene or checking to make sure of the dosage or

          6  the chemicals that are going into it? Give me some

          7  general ideas.

          8                 DR. ROST: It could be any one of

          9  those things. Basically, when you do a drug and when

         10  you do studies in a drug, you manufacture it in a

         11  certain way. Then you have to scale up that

         12  manufacturing process for commercial use and it has

         13  to follow certain steps and procedures to make sure

         14  it's exactly the same thing. If you have hygiene

         15  issues or if you have other issues, that means it

         16  wouldn't be quite what you initially had, then the

         17  FDA steps in. The FDA doesn't step in and do a

         18  consent decree until they have had like ten

         19  different warning letters. They tried everything and

         20  the manufacturers still didn't improve. Then you get

         21  hit with that kind of a situation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Counsel has asked

         23  me to ask how long would a typical investigation

         24  take?

         25                 DR. ROST: I'm not a regulatory or
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          2  manufacturing person. I could speculate. I would

          3  assume usually you have issues and problems going on

          4  for several years until you get to the point where

          5  you are forced to have a consent decree.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I have a couple of

          7  other questions for both of you. But I want to turn

          8  to my colleagues. I know Council Member Barron has

          9  questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Doctor, I just

         11  would like to ask you, you said that in parallel

         12  trade, importation in Europe that they are no

         13  contaminated drugs that you know of as a result of

         14  that trade policy. What do they do to ensure the

         15  safety?

         16                 DR. ROST: Well, in Europe it is a

         17  closed system. The way it works over there and it's

         18  so much safer than what we have here today and we

         19  should have something similar. What they do over

         20  there, they have authorized parallel traders who are

         21  regulated, who buy drugs from authorized

         22  wholesalers, usually in Italy, Spain and Greece.

         23  Then they take those drugs, they repackage them in

         24  whatever language in the country it's going to be

         25  sold; usually U.K., Germany or the Scandinavian
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          2  countries. They repackage it and sell it to

          3  authorized distributors. So it's a closed chain.

          4  Patients don't go on the internet in Europe to buy

          5  drugs. They go to their pharmacy and they have

          6  choices. They can either buy the brand name drug at

          7  full price or they can buy the same drug at a

          8  significant discount if it exists as a parallel

          9  traded drug.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How do they

         11  become authorized?

         12                 DR. ROST: Each country has the same

         13  types of rules and regulations as we have over here.

         14  The same oversight of drug supply making sure that

         15  it's not counterfeit; that it meets the different

         16  standards and so on. Anything that is sold in each

         17  country has to be meet the same standard as what we

         18  are doing it over here. It's the same kind of

         19  different inspections, regulatory agencies and so

         20  on.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: This is just

         22  an interesting question for me. You came as a

         23  private citizen concerned here today. How do you

         24  reconcile your relationship with Pfizer with all of

         25  the knowledge that you have and the compelling
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          2  testimony that you've given. Is there some

          3  contradictions or how do you manage that one? How do

          4  you juggle that?

          5                 DR. ROST: It's a good question. I am

          6  a physician also. As such, I've taken an oath to do

          7  what's right for people to uphold life. And I can't

          8  violate that. I do believe very strongly that what

          9  we're doing here today is causing a lot of people to

         10  die and to be sick. That's a very basic oath. The

         11  other part is, I'm also a business person. I love

         12  the pharm industry. I have loved working in for all

         13  these years. I do believe that they are from a

         14  business point of view making their biggest mistake

         15  ever. You cannot alienate your customers the way

         16  this industry has done it. Nine out of ten Americans

         17  don't believe, according to Pharm Executive, nine

         18  out of ten don't believe that pharm industries are

         19  honest and truthful. You can't have situation as a

         20  business. So short term, clearly we are propping up

         21  sales and profits. But long term, I think this will

         22  lead to disaster. I hope that by speaking out that

         23  I'm doing actually something good for the industry

         24  as well.

         25                 You know what? I am not the only one.
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          2  Recently somebody sent an article from New York

          3  Times from this summer, Merck, one of the biggest

          4  U.S. Drug companies, their prior chairman, Roy

          5  Balagos (phonetic) spoke out. You know what, he said

          6  the same thing I did. But he's obviously retired and

          7  quite okay. He doesn't risk as much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sure his

         11  parachute was golden. Council Member Gentile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair. We've done a pretty good job of beating

         14  up on Pfizer here this morning. I'm just curious

         15  because I just received something in the mail from

         16  Pfizer and I guess maybe Ms. Sanjek could comment on

         17  this. It seems to me that some of these private

         18  companies like Pfizer, like Merck, have these drug

         19  programs for people for free prescriptions and free

         20  drug supplies. Can you comment on that and maybe

         21  explain whether it's widespread or effective in any

         22  way? Because I understand that particularly Pfizer,

         23  because they are just sending out material in the

         24  past week.

         25                 MS. SANJEK: I think it's clear that
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          2  the industry patient assistance programs do help

          3  those that they're able to reach and those that they

          4  choose to help through these programs. But I think

          5  it is also equally clear that these programs are not

          6  an answer to the crisis that most Americans are

          7  facing. Speaking for myself, I think they are really

          8  programs that are part of the public relations

          9  operations of the world's most profitable

         10  corporations. While I am glad that they are there to

         11  help people because we have so many people that are

         12  facing life and death gaps, I think that we can't

         13  rely on that as a solution to this problem.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You say it's

         15  a public relations ploy because they don't make it

         16  widely known or there are not many people using the

         17  patients --

         18                 MS. SANJEK: Well, I think they reach

         19  the people. They are an industry that is able to

         20  reach the people they mean to reach. I think that

         21  they have no lack of no how or resources to reach

         22  people. I think they reach the people who they want

         23  to reach. I think they do set up elaborate screening

         24  procedures and eligibility criteria. They are

         25  discretionary to each company. So I have talked with
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          2  people who it does create a big burden on physicians

          3  to produce information sometimes in order for people

          4  to qualify for these programs. The corporations

          5  maintain complete discretion over how long they will

          6  provide this assistance and to whom following lots

          7  of different criteria. Many people are helped for a

          8  limited period of time and then they're given EPIC's

          9  telephone number and say, go and see if you can get

         10  help from EPIC.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: This is a topic

         12  that I think is fascinating. I want to try to wrap

         13  up the testimony from you two, although it's

         14  compelling. Because we have one other person here.

         15  Ms. Sanjek, in terms of the staff has put together

         16  some excellent questions, what is your opinion of

         17  some of the State websites that have been set up to

         18  facilitate the purchase of drugs from other

         19  countries?

         20                 MS. SANJEK: I'm sorry that New York

         21  State is not participating in that. I think the

         22  Minnesota example which provides patient assistance

         23  and where the state of Minnesota actually sent

         24  members of their pharmacy board to vet the proposals

         25  that they received from Canadian pharmacies was
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          2  precisely the kind of thing that government should

          3  be doing so that we don't have people wandering the

          4  internet trying to figure out who is a legitimate

          5  source or not.

          6                 It is our hope that New York State

          7  would better late than never think about putting up

          8  a website that would represent that sort of review.

          9  I know it was the motivation behind the initiatives

         10  both in West Chester county and in Nassau county to

         11  move ahead with selecting a pharmaceutical benefits

         12  manager to help them provide some kind of discount

         13  program to the residents of both of those counties

         14  and there are other New York counties also looking

         15  into that.

         16                 I would like to add that one of the

         17  things that I think is important is this education

         18  about prices. It's not an accident that HHC and the

         19  Veterans Administration have better prices because

         20  those are instances where government is helping to

         21  negotiate, set the terms for negotiation of those

         22  prices. What we need is New York State to do that

         23  more actively. But we also would urge your support

         24  for the State legislation that would require -- we

         25  now require pharmacists to post prices of the 150
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          2  most used drugs in this State on a weekly basis. We

          3  would urge your support for the legislation that

          4  would require that information to be put up on the

          5  web so that people don't have to try to actually go

          6  to each pharmacist and then try to get a computer

          7  printout and then compare prices. But that there

          8  would be a much more accessible source of price

          9  comparison information that would just make use of

         10  what we're already requiring a pharmacist in New

         11  York.

         12                 DR. ROST: May I add a number that

         13  might be of interest to you? Before coming here, I

         14  spoke to the former Mayor of Springfield,

         15  Massachusetts since they were one of the first ones

         16  sitting up such a program, a website. He told me

         17  that this year they will save $6 million on drugs

         18  because of this program and they will spend a total

         19  of $20 million this year. That means this year, they

         20  already have a saving of 25 percent. Last year, they

         21  saved $3 million. We're talking about a significant,

         22  for any cash strap City, a significant difference in

         23  cost.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Sanjek, I think

         25  you had answered our question and aside from
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          2  permitting the drug importation, what other

          3  proposals exist to help lower the costs of

          4  prescription drugs. I think what you were just

          5  discussing and I wanted to let you know that we will

          6  look quite clearly at amending the legislation to

          7  address the Senate bill --

          8                 MS. SANJEK: Good.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- That you had

         10  discussed. I don't think that's going to be too

         11  difficult for us to do. Dr. Rost, briefly, because I

         12  do want to move us through this hearing, it seemed

         13  to me last week or the week before when the United

         14  States Senate gave this unbelievable tax benefit to

         15  corporations, $138 billion of loss tax revenue

         16  that's going to corporations. It seems to be me if I

         17  read it correctly, there is a lot of pharmaceutical

         18  companies that are also going to be benefiting.

         19  Perhaps you didn't read this article. But it's my

         20  sense that they are going to be benefiting from this

         21  tax bill that somehow got through the Senate. Can

         22  you help us understand ever so briefly maybe on 101

         23  level this whole issue of research and development?

         24                 DR. ROST: I'd like to.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just try to do it
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          2  briefly for us. Because it's my understanding,

          3  certainly in the period of time when I was

          4  especially involved with AIDS activism, that so much

          5  of the research and development is actually paid for

          6  by the government. Anyway. What percentage can you

          7  help us understand do these pharmaceuticals actually

          8  expend in terms of research and development and then

          9  somehow claim proprietary interest in particular

         10  drugs. Any one of those things that they throw up at

         11  us that we're suppose to be so concerned that we

         12  should continue to be pay exorbitant prices for

         13  drugs.

         14                 DR. ROST: This information is

         15  publicly available and it's very interesting. I'll

         16  give you the 30 second run down. Let's just take one

         17  big company with a good reputation as an example,

         18  Merck. And actually if you multiply their numbers

         19  with ten, you get the numbers for the total business

         20  in the U.S. Merck last year had sales of about $22.5

         21  billion. Out of those $22.5 billion, they spent

         22  roughly $3.2 billion on research and development.

         23  It's not quite as much as they spend on dividends to

         24  shareholders which was about $3.4 billion. It's a

         25  lot less than they spent on marketing and selling
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          2  which was about $6.4 billion. It's even less than

          3  they spent on profits, $6.8 billion. But clearly, if

          4  anybody would say, well we want to keep our profits.

          5  We want to keep our marketing. It doesn't sound warm

          6  or fussy as if we want to keep R&D.

          7                 I would challenge you to name one

          8  example of a corporation that ever committed

          9  suicide. You see the drug industry has drugs on

         10  patent. You don't do R&D. You don't have a company

         11  ten years from now. It is the last thing any company

         12  in the drug industry would cut back on. But again,

         13  that wouldn't work so well in the debate would it?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And the

         15  government's investment in research and development

         16  for drugs, is there a percentage generally that you

         17  can put on this or am I wrong that often times the

         18  government gives drug corporations money for

         19  research and development?

         20                 DR. ROST: My best recommendation

         21  would be to get the book, The Truth about the Drug

         22  Companies by Marsha Ingal (phonetic) which has been

         23  the best seller for the last couple of months. She

         24  talks extensively and writes about this in the fact

         25  NIH spends a lot of money and time on developing new
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          2  drugs. And often the drug industry picks up that at

          3  minimal cost. There are different opinions about

          4  this. Clearly, U.S. Taxpayers do fund a very large

          5  portion of the bill for new drugs. I can't say how

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you both very

          8  much for being here today. I appreciate it. We're

          9  going to be following up with you and I'm looking

         10  forward to getting these resolutions passed out of

         11  our Committee in the next month or so. I would

         12  imagine that the Council would pass them

         13  overwhelming, perhaps even before the first of the

         14  year. Thank you again both for being here today.

         15                 DR. ROST: Thank you for having us.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The last person, at

         17  least that's signed up to testify is Dr. Elizabeth,

         18  is it Wennar? Yes, thank you. I understand you've

         19  traveled from up north Vermont, I think it is, to be

         20  with us. We appreciate you being here today. Now my

         21  counsel said something about you being a Boston Red

         22  Sox fan. Did you say that Deborah? Oh, okay. Is

         23  there any Boston Red Sox fans here other than the

         24  foreigners, raise your hand. Right. Thank you, Dr.

         25  Wennar.
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          2                 DR. WENNAR: You're welcome. I'm not

          3  going to read my testimony. I provided you copies

          4  with all of the exhibits. I apologize for being

          5  late. I had to get a little bit of an early start

          6  this morning, about 5:00. I would also like to

          7  commend Dr. Rost on his brilliance in terms and his

          8  courage. I've been waiting for this for a long time.

          9  I thank you very much for the opportunity to be here

         10  today. Your questions, I have to tell you, I could

         11  only wish that when I testified before Congress that

         12  they would ask some of the questions that you're

         13  posing.

         14                 Having said that, what I'm going to

         15  do is just sort of give you a little bit of

         16  background and then you can read my testimony. I

         17  provided some documentation in my testimony. There

         18  are a number of exhibits that are there. I do

         19  apologize for my phone ringing earlier. But in

         20  addition to all of my other duties, I'm trying to

         21  get vaccine from Canada, that third world country.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're forgiven on

         23  today.

         24                 DR. WENNAR: Thank you, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That doesn't go for
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          2  my colleagues, just the people who are visiting.

          3                 DR. WENNAR: Today's healthcare market

          4  presents many challenges. None is more controversial

          5  than the technology that comes to us in the form of

          6  a pill. I do refer to it as technology because it's

          7  an essential component of healthcare now. I don't

          8  think anybody would debate that. More pharmaceutical

          9  spending has almost doubled in less than a decade.

         10  More often than ever, our policymakers and physician

         11  providers are being queried as to why it is that

         12  Americans must pay many times more for their

         13  medications than their counterparts in other

         14  countries.

         15                 As you know, over the past few years,

         16  many of your constituents have been purchasing their

         17  medications from Canada. For these individuals,

         18  these medications are now affordable and even more

         19  importantly, they are safe. From a pure medical

         20  standpoint, the most important part of a treatment

         21  plan that is intended to produce the best possible

         22  outcome for a patient is the patient's ability to

         23  comply with what the physician has prescribed for

         24  them. Any medication, as part of a prescribed

         25  treatment plan, that is not affordable and therefore
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          2  not accessible, is neither safe nor effective.

          3                 Having said that, what I'm going to

          4  do is just read to you some facts and observations.

          5  I've really been involved with this since probably

          6  1997. We really started as a little grass roots

          7  movement in Vermont and we challenged the system

          8  because we knew that there were people that we were

          9  trying to serve that were not taking their

         10  medications and ending up in the emergency room.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can you just

         12  briefly tell us the name of your organization?

         13                 DR. WENNAR: The name of the

         14  organization is United Health Alliance. It's an

         15  alliance between about 120 community based

         16  physicians in a rural area and a rural hospital with

         17  a nursing home and a home health agency. We serve

         18  people from Vermont, Massachusetts and New York

         19  State. Having said that, I'm just going to read to

         20  you some of my observations over the last, it seems

         21  like the better part of my life since 1997 with

         22  this.

         23                 Parallel trade has existed safely in

         24  the EU for years. There is no evidence that parallel

         25  trade promotes counterfeiting when the appropriate
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          2  controls and regulatory processes are established. I

          3  presented you with some exhibits from the Parallel

          4  Trade Association. We've met with them on many

          5  occasions and I too agree that they have probably a

          6  safer environment with the way they trade than we

          7  do.

          8                 Importation from Canada exist. It's a

          9  fact. The U.S. Consumer has taken it upon themselves

         10  to demonstrate that it works. Millions are currently

         11  utilizing it as a means to comply with their

         12  treatment plans. The Canadian system is well

         13  regulated and safe. I've also provided you with some

         14  exhibits that are detailed letters from the

         15  equivalent of the FDA and from the equivalent of HHS

         16  in Canada on the issue. Canada as does other

         17  countries have the equivalent of the FDA and they

         18  perform those duties.

         19                 Consumer satisfaction with regards to

         20  importation is high. It's very high. Compliance for

         21  those using importation from Canada is also high.

         22  Physicians engaged in the process now are as well

         23  satisfied and they are engaged. Compliance results

         24  in better outcomes and potentially lower cost to the

         25  overall health system. Guidelines and standards can
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          2  and have been established for the oversight of mail-

          3  order. Accreditation process must be much broader

          4  than just the marketing via the internet.

          5                 U.S. Consumers created the mail-

          6  order industry in Canada. Legitimate mail- order in

          7  Canada welcomes standards and the regulatory

          8  processes needed to provide safety controls for U.S.

          9  Citizens protecting them from unscrupulous providers

         10  on the internet. You must remember that the majority

         11  of medications that are being obtained are what are

         12  classified as maintenance medications. They are not

         13  life style drugs. Those need to be completely

         14  separated.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: They're not what?

         16                 DR. WENNAR: Life style drugs. Viagra.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see.

         18                 DR. WENNAR: Those types of things.

         19  And you do see a lot of advertising on the internet

         20  and that is advertising and marketing. Nobody uses

         21  the internet to reach in and grab their medications

         22  or anything else. Everything on the internet is

         23  mail- order. It's just a matter of who are the good

         24  ones and who are the bad ones and what are the means

         25  to judge them. There are means to do that.
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          2                 The community based pharmacists must

          3  be reintegrated into health management plans. Mail-

          4  order has essentially in this country, not mail-

          5  order in Canada because mail- order exist here. It

          6  did not exist in Canada until we decided to create

          7  it because it technically does not lower the price

          8  to an individual going into a pharmacy or whether

          9  they go with mail- order. In the United States,

         10  we've maintained that mail- order will lower the

         11  cost. But it has not improved, I would argue,

         12  quality. It has actually compromised quality by

         13  pulling out the community based pharmacists from

         14  being engaged in the conversations.

         15                 We also are mistakenly believing that

         16  our medications when we go in are often times judged

         17  accordingly as it relates to drug to drug

         18  interactions. But I ask you all to think about the

         19  last time you or a family member went in and

         20  actually gave an entire list of every medication

         21  you're on to the pharmacist including over the

         22  counter, herbals and everything else before you had

         23  your prescription filled. I'm going to also refer to

         24  something else which has not been brought up, but as

         25  a bit of passion of mine as I methodically go
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          2  through what we have in this country.

          3                 Every physician's office across this

          4  country has samples in its office. I do not know any

          5  physician that runs those medications as they hand

          6  them to patients through a drug to drug interaction

          7  process. They do not do that. Secondly, I have

          8  physicians telling me that I know you're concerned

          9  about that, but they are not convinced that it is

         10  done consistently and routinely in this country when

         11  we do prescribe and people do have their

         12  prescriptions filled. I will tell you that it is

         13  done consistently in mail- order from Canada.

         14                 I have also provided to you recent

         15  reports by Dr. Sagar, by the GAO, by AARP as

         16  exhibits so that you can see some of the more recent

         17  studies that have been done. One is particularly

         18  interesting from Dr. Sagar which shows that the

         19  pharmaceutical companies actually are making money

         20  off of the prescription drugs that are being ordered

         21  from Canada. It really does not make any sense

         22  economically for them to shut this off. In fact,

         23  they will make more money.

         24                 Legislation is necessary to provide

         25  standards and oversight for what already exist. What
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          2  we need to do now is take care of this situation as

          3  it exists. Because millions are getting their

          4  medications and we need to now act from the

          5  standpoint of the safety and the quality oversight.

          6  The industry continues to strategically cut supply

          7  to any sources that are identified worldwide; not

          8  just in Canada. We now know that they are beginning

          9  to make moves on outside of Canada. It was

         10  predicted. This is like a chess game. It's a matter

         11  of how fast can they move the pieces and hopefully

         12  before the rest of us can figure out strategically

         13  what they're doing.

         14                 Having said that, what I would like

         15  to do is close and let you ask me questions. I would

         16  like to make some comments on the two resolutions

         17  that you have proposed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please do.

         19                 DR. WENNAR: In observing, I think

         20  these are far overdue. I encourage other states,

         21  other cities to do the same thing. I would suggest

         22  that you incorporate some additional language and

         23  I've taken the opportunity (I will provide you with

         24  that). There is some things that would strengthen it

         25  a little bit more in both of them; in both of them,
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          2  I think. I would encourage you, one with the supply

          3  side to encourage some teeth in any legislation that

          4  talks about any attempts to cut supply And I would

          5  also say that take into consideration that

          6  importation under personal use has been going on for

          7  years. Individuals are complying with their

          8  treatment plans as I talked about. That is a quality

          9  issue from a provider side. Because now they're

         10  taking their medications as prescribed.

         11                 Think about it this way. If the

         12  suppliers are now trying to cut supply with full

         13  knowledge that the individuals are taking their

         14  medications, are they not doing harm intentionally.

         15  I would say by cutting supply, they are creating a

         16  very difficult situation from the standpoint of

         17  safety. They are creating the safety issue. Not us.

         18                 Having said that, I'll answer your

         19  questions now. Certainly, after you've had an

         20  opportunity to review my written testimony and the

         21  exhibits, I'd be happy to provide you with any

         22  supplemental information. I could have provided you

         23  with a lot more. But I sort of figure if you want

         24  it, you'll ask for it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we will.
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          2  Thank you very much. I think a lot of the questions

          3  that we had asked the previous panel are sort of

          4  similar to what we would have addressed. It sounds

          5  like to me that we're fairly much on the same page.

          6  You are a physician?

          7                 DR. WENNAR: No. My doctorate is in

          8  health policy. I completed my doctorate dissertation

          9  back in 1999. I completed it on a piece of

         10  legislation under the Clinton administration which

         11  was called MESA (phonetic) which was passed in

         12  importation. It was the Medicine Equity and Safety

         13  Act. It was signed into law but refused to be

         14  implemented by the Secretary of Health and Human

         15  Services. We do have a valid importation law in

         16  place. It's just continually refused to be

         17  implemented.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that's

         19  interesting. That's something I'd ask our staff to

         20  take a look at. You talk often in your testimony

         21  about, I forget how you characterize them, but small

         22  drug store independents. Is that what you --

         23                 DR. WENNAR: I'm talking about what we

         24  would consider to be the provider side of pharmacy

         25  management, the pharmacist; the local pharmacist.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The local

          3  pharmacist. And this coalition came about as a

          4  survival mechanism for them or is that one of the

          5  reasons?

          6                 DR. WENNAR: No, you mean in terms of

          7   -- what are we talking about? Importation?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm looking at a

          9  broader sense. I don't know the market up there. I

         10  know that we in New York are overwhelmed by the

         11  large chains whether it's Rite Aid or Duane Reed or

         12  the rest of them in the neighborhoods. I'm curious,

         13  I was asking my colleague if they in fact could not

         14  exercise some clout in terms of the price. They buy

         15  those drugs directly from the manufacturer or at

         16  least I think they do.

         17                 DR. WENNAR: The wholesaler.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The wholesaler,

         19  right. But even that is close to a retail price in

         20  comparison to what we're understanding. I'm trying

         21  to understand your alliance and coalition in terms

         22  of working with the local pharmaceuticals. I

         23  personally have a lot of health issues and have

         24  found a local pharmacist to I prefer working with

         25  because it's more customer friendly. But I know
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          2  they're always on the edge of going out of business

          3  because they can't compete on some levels.

          4                 However, if you have insurance it

          5  doesn't necessarily matter because you're paying a

          6  certain amount of co- pay whether you pay it to

          7  Duane Reed or you pay it to the local pharmacist.

          8  It's only when you don't that you may have other

          9  than the fact they remember your name and their

         10  supportive and they'll stay open a half hour longer

         11  for you to get there, et cetera, et cetera. I'm

         12  trying to understand. Your alliance sounds terrific,

         13  but what is the reason for these groups coming

         14  together.

         15                 DR. WENNAR: Let me explain to you.

         16  First, our alliance is an alliance that's made up of

         17  physicians, health system and a nursing home and

         18  when we got started with this, we developed a

         19  program called, initially we called it Rx Assist and

         20  then we called it Medicine Assist. But this is a

         21  bigger issue. Obviously, we all admit that

         22  importation is not the answer to bringing down the

         23  global price in the United States of prescription

         24  drugs. The importance of the pharmacist that I'm

         25  trying to exercise here is that in Canada mail-
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          2  order was really born out of retail there. So retail

          3  pharmacist there were the ones who got engaged in

          4  developing mail- order.

          5                 In the United States, mail- order

          6  really wasn't born at the local level by the retail

          7  pharmacist because they are now disengaged with

          8  mail- order. Because they are not part of that whole

          9  system from the stand point of what I would call

         10  quality oversight in terms of actually acting as a

         11  consultant. They've been disengaged basically, the

         12  pharmacist. Think of them much like you would a

         13  physician as being a central to your care and

         14  particularly for this piece of pharmacy management

         15  and it's such a major component of healthcare now.

         16  It's been pulled away by mail- order.

         17                 When you order through the mail, I

         18  would ask if any of you are doing that, how many

         19  times you had a conversation with a pharmacist about

         20  all the medications you're on and about the

         21  particular drug you're about to take. They have been

         22  disengaged from the conversation. What we believe is

         23  that I can certainly tell you in the Canadian model

         24  that exist right now with mail- order, those

         25  particular individuals are very interested in some
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          2  sort of model that might reengage pharmacist in the

          3  United States at the local level so that they could

          4  do quality oversight. It doesn't mean sell to them

          5  because certainly that's directly illegal to do

          6  right now. They can't sell it directly to them for

          7  commercial gain in terms of resale. But they do

          8  believe that they could be engaged in the quality

          9  oversight.

         10                 What I believe is any model that's

         11  developed really needs to reengage pharmacist in the

         12  discussions of this. Because this a big issue. We're

         13  talking about cost all the time, but now when I go

         14  to Washington, we spend the majority of our time

         15  talking about safety for the consumer and quality.

         16  So if you're going to talk about that you cannot

         17  exclude pharmacists from the discussion.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Council

         19  Member Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         21  much for the testimony. I found it very interesting

         22  as prior testimony. I'm really trying to get a grasp

         23  of what's really going on here. My immediate

         24  thoughts was okay, these are American

         25  pharmaceuticals just want to monopolize as much as
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          2  they can and maximize profits. It's not really about

          3  safety or regulation. It's really about the

          4  maximization of profit. Then we here from Dr. Rost

          5  that it might even be better if they reduced their

          6  prices as he did when was in the business or if he's

          7  still in the business that he reduced it and even

          8  makes more business sense to bring down prices. So

          9  if it makes more business sense and you say Canada

         10  is really regulated and safe and that's not an

         11  issue. Safety and regulation is not the real issue.

         12                 If it makes more business sense then

         13  I guess they won't agree with you. Maybe that's it.

         14  But if makes more business sense, then that's not

         15  the real issue. If people are already doing this as

         16  you have stated, what's the real, what's going on

         17  here? What's at the heart of this thing?

         18                 DR. WENNAR: It's all about control.

         19  The reality is that they've essentially controlled

         20  our market place for so long --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right.

         22                 DR. WENNAR: -- And when I say

         23  control, I mean I don't think I had a realization of

         24  how much control they had until I went to

         25  Washington. I've been stomping those halls now for
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          2  six to seven years and I had no idea. I tell you

          3  when the realization really came to me in terms of

          4  control. Because control and money are the two

          5  things that really go together. There is a huge

          6  amount of money.

          7                 We didn't talk about direct to

          8  consumer advertising. I'm not sure how that really

          9  contributes to improving the overall health. But for

         10  $2.7 billion a year just to do direct to consumer

         11  advertising and they play it down like it's such a

         12  small amount of money, but I would ask you and, of

         13  course, you're in a very big City. But $2.7 billion,

         14  I don't know how that would fit into your budget,

         15  but in most places that's a lot of money. You can do

         16  a lot of good with it.

         17                 They've never shown how much good

         18  they do with direct to consumer advertising. But

         19  getting back to your question in terms of the

         20  control piece. I'm answering it because that's my

         21  belief that it's a control issue. If they lose

         22  control in the United States, then they have really

         23  lost it. Because this has really been their ground

         24  for where they have the most control in the world.

         25  Because remember in most other countries, the
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          2  government is the biggest payor. So, therefore, if

          3  they're the biggest payor, they're going to make

          4  sure they get the best price.

          5                 Having said that, that's not true for

          6  us. That's evidenced by what happened under Medicare

          7  with the prescription benefit. Everybody is still

          8  scratching their heads trying to say how it is

          9  possible that the largest purchaser in the United

         10  States is not going to save money by negotiating

         11  best pricing under Medicare. Everybody is in awe. I

         12  think that was the biggest realization of mine when

         13  I realized that they had basically influenced that

         14  decision and managed to get that language into the

         15  legislation. It's about control and holding onto

         16  this market place.

         17                 The one thing that I would like to

         18  add because I think Dr. Rost was very eloquent in

         19  the way he spoke about research and development. But

         20  the other thing that you need to realize is that

         21  really we allow so many drugs to be introduced

         22  within therapeutic classes, within a therapeutic

         23  class. It's not a brand new drug each time. It's

         24  something that's been and certainly I'm not a

         25  chemist, but something is tweaked a little or the
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          2  color of the pill is changed. Something happens not

          3  to change the drug dramatically in terms of what

          4  you're going to get as a result. They maintain their

          5  control that way. It's a control issue and it is

          6  about the bottom line. It is about money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 DR. WENNAR: It's just a matter of who

         10  has it and who doesn't.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. We are

         13  going to continue to keep you all aware of what the

         14  Council is doing. We are often times told by the

         15  Administration and others that are our resolutions

         16  have no weight.

         17                 DR. WENNAR: I disagree.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We do think that a

         19  market this size when elected officials take this

         20  issue on, it gives impetus to the compelling

         21  argument that I think is national obviously argument

         22  or debate about the cost of healthcare. Certainly I

         23  think that from a personal perspective while I am

         24  protected by having a very good healthcare policy,

         25  I'm very aware of the issue of compliance that we
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          2  talked about. I think that's under appreciated

          3  particularly with the people who are struggling to

          4  pay this to take it upon themselves to reduce the

          5  dosage that they take, modify it, wait until the end

          6  of the month until they can get new prescriptions

          7  which is a real threat to people's health.

          8                 Again, I appreciate all of you coming

          9  here today. It's my priority to have all of this

         10  legislation passed and through the Council before

         11  the end of the year. Seeing no other people are here

         12  to testify, I want to again thank you all and my

         13  colleagues for being here today. This hearing is

         14  adjourned. Thank you.

         15                 DR. WENNAR: Thank you.

         16                 (Meeting adjourned at 11:46 a.m.)
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